
 
PCCS Board of Director’s Meeting 

 AGENDA 
November 19, 2024, at 7:o0PM 

Vicky Ranney Library  
1571 Jones Point Road Grayslake, IL 60030 

________________________________________________________________ 
 

Call to Order            President  
 

Public Comment      10 Minutes 
 

Discussion Agenda   
1. Committee Updates: Academics & Governance 
2. 2nd Reading Amended Policy 400.1 Uniform Grievance Policy. 
3. Review of ISBE request of additions to Policy 500.14 Bullying Policy  

 

 Consent Agenda 
4. Financial Statements  
5. Motion to Approve Open Session Minutes of Previous Board and Committee Meetings  
6. Motion to Accept Reports on Consent Agenda 
        

Closed Session: 
 

Discussion related to 5ILCS 120/2(c) (2) Collective negotiating matters between the public body and its 
employees or their representatives, or deliberations concerning salary schedules for one or more classes 
of employees.  

7. One or More Classes of Employees 
 

Discussion related to 5ILCS 120/2(c) 21-Discussion of minutes of meetings lawfully closed under this 
Act, whether for purposes of approval by the body of the minutes or semi-annual review of the minutes 
mandated by Section 2.06 

8. Review Closed Session Minutes from Previous Board Meetings 
 

Discussion Related to 5ILCS 120/2(c)(11) Litigation, when an action against, affecting, or on behalf of 
the public body has been filed and is pending before a court or administrative tribunal, or when the 
public body finds that an action is probable or imminent, in which case the basis for the finding shall be 
recorded and entered into the minutes of the closed meeting. 

9. Legal Bills (if received) 
 

Public Comment      10 Minutes 
 

Action Agenda  
 2A – Approve Amended Policy 200.12 Uniform Grievance Policy. 
 3A – Approve Edits to Policy 500.14 
 8A – Approve Closed Session Minutes from Previous Board Meetings  

     9A – Approve Legal Bills  
   

 New Business: December Meeting 
  

Adjourn 
 

 
 
 
A copy of the board documents for this meeting is available for viewing on the school web site. 
 
 

Thank you for attending the meeting of the PCCS Board of Education. Individual board members do not respond to public comment. 
For questions or comments, please e-mail the Board at board@pccharterschool.org. The PCCS Board of Directors consists of: 
 

President: Matt Earl   Vice President: Rebekka Herrington  Treasurer: Ankur Bhatia       
Secretary: Steve Heroux    Navin Chatlani     Josh Pejsach 
Leah Stender    JoAnn Stewart    Gabi White                 



Discussion Agenda 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Academic Excellence Committee Update 



A Therapy Dog at PCCS



Canines 4 Comfort

Canines 4 Comfort trains and places facility/comfort dogs in schools and 

in first responder teams within our community to support mental health 

wellness.

● Each dog, along with its handler, is required to have ongoing training 

and pass a temperament evaluation for suitability.

● Dogs must remain up to date on veterinarian care.

https://canines4comfort.org/


Advantages of Therapy Dogs

● Improves school culture and relationships among the 
community

● Improves academic skill development

● Improves social-emotional wellness among students and staff 
by reducing stress, providing comfort, and strengthening social 
skills



Therapy Dogs Improve School Culture

● Feelings of connectedness and purpose among the school community.

● Increased opportunities for socialization resulting in a sense of happiness and 

well-being.

● Improved social interactions as a therapy dog serves as a "social facilitator," 

encouraging students to interact with each other while sharing the experience of 

interacting with the dog.

● Increased empathy and compassion: Interacting with a therapy dog can teach students 

to be mindful of another being's needs, fostering empathy and understanding towards 

others.



Therapy Dogs Improve Academic Learning

● Therapy dogs have been shown to increase mental stimulation, and by reducing stress 
and anxiety, they improve engagement and readiness to learn.

● Dog-assisted reading programs generally show promising results such as gains in 
reading skills (e.g., reading accuracy, oral reading fluency, comprehension), as well as 
more positive attitudes and improved behaviors toward reading, as they eliminate the 
fear of judgement.

● A study conducted by the University of California on canine reading programs found 
that students who participated in one program increased their reading fluency by 
between 12 percent and 30 percent.



Therapy Dogs Improve Social Emotional Wellness

● Improved non-verbal communication skills: Students may practice non-verbal communication by 
reading the dog's body language and responding appropriately, enhancing their social awareness. 

● Improved ability to share big emotions/feelings such as grief without fear of judgement.

● Improved self-esteem and confidence: Positive interactions with a therapy dog can build 
self-confidence, especially for students who might struggle with social situations.

● Reduced stress, anxiety, loneliness, and feelings of isolation and depression.

● A 2019 study published by the National Institute of Health found that a dog present in the 
classroom promotes a positive mood and provides significant anti-stress effects on the body.



Therapy Dogs Are Common in Our Community
● Grayslake Central High School

● Grayslake North High School

● Copeland Manor Elementary School in Libertyville

● Libertyville High School

● Vernon Hills High School

● Lake County Courthouse

● Lutheran Church Charity K9 visit at Woodland Primary

● Glenview Middle School

● Lake Forest High School

● Buffalo Grove district 102 therapy dog reading program

…to name a few!



Meet Emi!



About Emi

● Name: Emi (Short for “Emily”)

● Breed: Retriever

● Age: 1 year

● Temperament: Selected for being calm around children

● Unique Feature: One ear is longer than the other

● Current Situation: 
○ Currently with a police officer

○  Frequently attending events with other dogs

● Donation Source: Donated by a breeder

● Handler: Ellie Jensen

● Secondary Handler: Annie Gernady



Link to  Standards and Procedures

● By clicking the title link above, you will find PCCS’s detailed standards and procedures that will apply to the 
use of a therapy dog on campus at school.  

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1PBeGxe4aPEuGCznOEHwRMQFsKZ0aHfjNoDFMdt018TM/edit?tab=t.0


Communication with Families

● The Dean of Faculty and Students shall notify parents and staff on an annual basis regarding the presence of 
therapy dogs on the school campus. A form can be submitted on a student’s behalf in order to opt out of 
direct contact with the therapy dog for reasons such as allergies or fear. Direct contact is considered physical 
touch between the dog and the child. 

● Google Form

https://docs.google.com/forms/d/e/1FAIpQLSffH5ENbZyqvK9XD6xmMrmksXPx4ZyIbNTSUobfT2Dis2K21Q/viewform?usp=sf_link


Feedback from the community so far…

● I love this so much! Thank you for the happy, exciting news for the school! 
● This is the BEST NEWS EVER!!! Thank you for making this happen.
● Awesome! Great step. 
● Mr. Zamiar- Thank you for your service in the military plus your service to students, families, 

and teachers every single school day before the idea of a therapeutic dog continuing the 
service cycle!!! Please express thanks to PCCS for generally feeling like a safe place for us.

● I love this so much!!!! 
● This is fantastic news! We have a therapy dog through CFC at Greenbriar. 
● Hooray!!! Wrigley the Wildcat would be in great approval of this message if she could 

speak. Libertyville High School has benefited greatly from Wrigley’s presence in our 
community on a daily basis. Congratulations!



Read More About The Benefits of Therapy Dogs!

https://www.therapydogs.com/how-do-therapy-dogs-help-in-the-classroom/

https://ehe.osu.edu/news/listing/therapy-dogs-enhance-learning-young-children

https://files.eric.ed.gov/fulltext/EJ1173578.pdf

https://www.caninecomprehension.com.au/blog/the-science-behind-therapy-dogs-

understanding-the-benefits-for-students39-mental-health_117s225

https://www.weareteachers.com/dogs-in-the-classroom/

https://www.therapydogs.com/how-do-therapy-dogs-help-in-the-classroom/
https://ehe.osu.edu/news/listing/therapy-dogs-enhance-learning-young-children
https://files.eric.ed.gov/fulltext/EJ1173578.pdf
https://www.caninecomprehension.com.au/blog/the-science-behind-therapy-dogs-understanding-the-benefits-for-students39-mental-health_117s225
https://www.caninecomprehension.com.au/blog/the-science-behind-therapy-dogs-understanding-the-benefits-for-students39-mental-health_117s225
https://www.weareteachers.com/dogs-in-the-classroom/


 
Board of Director’s Policy 

Governance 200 Series 
 

Policy # 200.12                         
 

 
Uniform Grievance Policy 

 
Summary: A person may file a complaint with the School’s Complaint Manager if they believe the 
Board or its employees have violated their rights. The Complaint Manager will investigate the 
complaint and file a written summary of their findings with the Executive Director who will 
subsequently make a written decision. The Director’s decision may be appealed to the Board. 

 
A student, parent/guardian, employee, or community member should notify any School Complaint 
Manager if they believe that the Board of Education, its employees, or agents have violated their 
rights guaranteed by the State or federal Constitution, State or federal statute, or Board policy, or 
have a complaint regarding any one of the following: 

1. Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act 42 U.S.C. §12101 et seq. 
2. Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, 20 U.S.C. §1681 et seq.,  
3. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C. §791 et seq. 
4. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act, 42 U.S.C. §2000d et seq.; 
5. Equal Employment Opportunities Act (Title VII of the Civil Rights Act), 42 U.S.C. §2000e 

et seq.; 
6. Sexual harassment prohibited by the State Officials and Employees Ethics Act 5 ILCS 

430/70- 5(a); Illinois Human Rights Act, 775 ILCS 5/; and Title VII of the Civil Rights Act 
of 1964, 42 U.S.C. §2000e et seq.  

7. Breastfeeding accommodations for students, 105 ILCS 5/10-20.60 
8. Bullying, 105 ILCS 5/27-23.7 
9. Misuse of funds received for services to improve educational opportunities for 

educationally disadvantaged or deprived children; 
10. Curriculum, instructional materials, and/or programs; 
11. Victims’ Economic Security and Safety Act, 820 ILCS 180; 
12. Illinois Equal Pay Act of 2003, 820 ILCS 112; 
13. Provision of services to homeless students. 
14. Illinois Whistleblower Act, 740 ILCS 174/. 
15. Misuse of genetic information prohibited by the Illinois Genetic Information Privacy Act, 

410 ILCS 513/; and Titles I and II of the Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act, 42 
U.S.C.§2000ff et seq. 

16. Employee Credit Privacy Act, 820 ILCS 70/ 
 

The Complaint Manager will first attempt to resolve complaints without resorting to this grievance 
procedure. If a formal complaint is filed, under this procedure, the Complaint Manager will address 
the complaint promptly and equitably. A student and/or parent/guardian filing a complaint under 
this procedure may forego any informal suggestions and/or attempts to resolve it and may proceed 
directly to the grievance procedure. The Complaint Manager will not require a student or 
parent/guardian complaining of any form of harassment to attempt to resolve allegations directly 
with the accused (or the accused’s parents/guardians); this includes mediation. 
 
Right to Pursue Other Remedies Not Impaired 
The right of a person to prompt and equitable resolution of a complaint filed under this policy shall 
not be impaired by the person’s pursuit of other remedies, e.g. criminal complaints, civil actions, 
etc. Use of this grievance procedure is not a prerequisite to the pursuit of other remedies and use of 
this grievance procedure does not extend any filing deadline related to the pursuit of other 
remedies. If a person is pursuing another remedy subject to a complaint under this policy, the 
School will continue with a simultaneous investigation under this policy. 



 
 
 

Deadlines 
All deadlines may be extended by the Complaint Manager as they deem appropriate. As used in 
this policy, “school business days” means days on which the School’s main office is open. 
 
Filing a Complaint 
A person (hereinafter Complainant) who wishes to avail themself of this grievance procedure may 
do so by filing a complaint with any School Complaint Manager. The Complainant shall not be 
required to file a complaint with a particular Complaint Manager and may request a Complaint 
Manager of the same gender. The Complaint Manager may request the Complainant to provide a 
written statement regarding the nature of the complaint or require a meeting with a student’s 
parent(s)/guardian(s). The Complaint Manager shall assist the Complainant as needed. 
 

1. For any complaint alleging bullying and/or cyber-bullying of students, the Complaint 
Manager shall process and review the complaint according to Board policy 500.14 Preventing 
Bullying, Intimidation and Harassment, in addition to any response required by this policy. For 
any complaint alleging sexual harassment or other violation of Board policy 400.8 Workplace 
Harassment Prohibited, the Complaint Manager shall process and review the complaint 
according to that policy, in addition to any response required by this policy. 

 
Investigation Process 
The Complaint Manager will investigate the complaint or appoint a qualified person to undertake 
the investigation on their behalf. The Complaint Manager shall ensure both parties have an equal 
opportunity to present evidence during an investigation. If the Complainant is a student under 18 
years of age, the Complaint Manager will notify their parent(s)/guardian(s) that they may attend 
any investigatory meetings in which their child is involved. The complaint and identity of the 
Complainant will not be disclosed except: (1) as required by law, this policy, or any collective 
bargaining agreement, (2) as necessary to fully investigate the complaint, or (3) as authorized by 
the Complainant. 
 
The identity of any student witnesses will not be disclosed except: (1) as required by law or any 
collective bargaining agreement, (2) as necessary to fully investigate the complaint, or (3) as 
authorized by the parent/guardian of the student witness, or by the student if the student is 18 
years of age or older. 
 
The Complaint Manager will inform, at regular intervals, the person(s) filing a complaint under 
this procedure about the status of the investigation. Within 30 school business days of the date the 
complaint was filed, the Complaint Manager shall file a written report of their findings with the 
Executive Director. The Complaint Manager may request an extension of time. The Executive 
Director  will keep the Board informed of all complaints. 
 
If a complaint contains allegations involving the Executive Director  or Board member(s), the 
written report shall be filed directly with the Board, which will make a decision in accordance with 
paragraph four of the following section of this policy. 
 
Decision and Appeal 
Within 5 school business days after receiving the Complaint Manager’s report, the Executive 
Director  shall mail their written decision to the Complainant and the accused by email, or 
registered mail, return receipt requested, and/or personal delivery as well as to the Complaint 
Manager. All decisions shall be based upon the preponderance of evidence standard. 
 
Within 10 school business days after receiving the Executive Director’s decision, the Complainant 
or the accused may appeal the decision to the Board of Directors by making a written request to the 
Complaint Manager. The Complaint Manager shall promptly forward all materials relative to the 
complaint and appeal to the Board. Within 30 school business days, the Board shall affirm, reverse, 



 
or amend the Executive Director’s decision or direct the Executive Director to gather additional 
information. Within 5 school business days of the Board’s decision, the Executive Director shall 
inform the Complainant and the accused of the Board’s action. 

 
For complaints containing allegations involving the Executive Director or Board member(s), within 
30 school business days after receiving the Complaint Manager’s or outside investigator’s report, 
the Board shall inform its written decision to the Complainant and the accused by email, or 
registered mail, return receipt requested, and/or personal delivery as well as to the Complaint 
Manager. 
 
This policy shall not be construed to create an independent right to a hearing before the Executive 
Director  or Board of Directors. The failure to strictly follow the timelines in this grievance 
procedure shall not prejudice any party. 
 
Appointing Nondiscrimination Coordinator and Complaint Managers 
The Executive Director shall appoint a Nondiscrimination Coordinator to manage the School’s 
efforts to provide equal opportunity employment and educational opportunities and prohibit the 
harassment of employees, students, and others. The Nondiscrimination Coordinator also serves as 
the School’s Title IX Coordinator. 
 
The Executive Director  shall appoint at least two Complaint Managers to administer this policy. If 
possible, the Executive Director will appoint two Complaint Managers, preferably of different 
genders. The School’s Nondiscrimination Coordinator may be appointed as one of the Complaint 
Managers. 
 
The Executive Director  shall insert into this policy and keep current the names, addresses, email 
addresses and telephone numbers of the Nondiscrimination Coordinator and Complaint Managers. 
The complainant may ask for the Executive Director  to designate a substitute Complaint Manager 
if the complainant prefers that the person hearing their complaint be a specific which is not 
represented by either of the designated complaint managers. 

 
Complaint Managers 
 

 
Primary: Secondary: 

Tony Zamiar Anne Gernady 
Dean of Faculty and Students School Psychologist 

1531 Jones Point Road Grayslake Il. 60030 1531 Jones Point Road Grayslake Il. 60030 

847-543-9722 847-543-9722 
tzamiar@pccharterschool.org agernady@pccharterschool.org 

 

Non-Discrimination Coordinator 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Melissa Thompson 
Director of Special Education and Title IX Coordinator 
1531 Jones Point Road Grayslake Il. 60030 
847-543-9722 
mthompson@pccharterschool.org 



 
LEGAL REF.:  
Age Discrimination in Employment Act, 29 U.S.C. §621 et seq. 
Americans With Disabilities Act, 42 U.S.C. §12101 et seq.  
Equal Pay Act, 29 U.S.C. §206(d). 
Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act, 42 U.S.C. §2000ff et seq.  
Immigration Reform and Control Act, 8 U.S.C. §1324a et seq. 
McKinney Homeless Assistance Act, 42 U.S.C. §11431 et seq. 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C. §791 et seq. 
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act, 42 U.S.C. §2000d et seq. 
Title IX of the Education Amendments, 20 U.S.C. §1681 et seq.; 34 C.F.R. Part 106 105 
ILCS 5/2-3.8, 5/3-10, 5/10-20.7a, 5/10-20.75 (final citation pending), 5/10-22.5, 
5/22-19, 5/24-4, 5/27.1, 5/27-23.7 and 45/1-15. 
Illinois Genetic Information Privacy Act, 410 ILCS 513/.  
Illinois Whistleblower Act, 740 ILCS 174/1 
Illinois Human Rights Act, 775 ILCS 5/. 
Victims’ Economic Security and Safety Act, 820 ILCS 180, 56  
Ill.Admin.Code Part 280. 
Equal Pay Act of 2003, 820 ILCS 112/. 
Employee Credit Privacy Act, 820 ILCS 70/10(b), and 70/25. 23  
Ill.Admin.Code §§1.240, 200-40, 226.50, and 226.570. 
 
CROSS REF.:  
Parent Student Handbook 
Collective Bargaining Agreement 
Staff Handbook 
 
  

 
Adoption Dates: 

Adopted: March 15, 2005 
Revised:  February 26, 2008 
Revised and Amended: November 19, 2024  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



500.14 Background 

The Bullying Policy was submitted to ISBE after the last review by the Board in August. 
 
It was returned with comments as partially rejected and with guidance of what language they 
need added for approval. 
 
 Attached is the Original Policy approved in August 2024 
 ISBE rejection comments in 5 specific Sections 
 A Redlined draft incorporation ISBE’s request. 

 
We have 90 days to resubmit starting from the  10/18/24 notification. 



1

Geoff Deigan

From: Hana Robben <HROBBEN@isbe.net> on behalf of Hana Robben
Sent: Friday, October 18, 2024 12:09 PM
To: gdeigan@pccharterschool.org
Subject: Bullying Policy Submission NOT APPROVED Prairie Crossing Charter School

Dear Administrator, 
 
ISBE has NOT APPROVED your bullying prevenƟon policy submission. As per 23 Ill. Admin. Code 1.295, please address 
any idenƟfied areas in your IWAS applicaƟon and resubmit an updated version of your policy no later than 90 days a er 
receipt of this no fica on.  For more informaƟon, please refer to the Bullying PrevenƟon Policy Requirements and 
Guidance and IWAS User Guide. 
 
Please note that Public Act 103-0047, which went into effect on June 9, 2023, made changes/addiƟons to the bullying 
prevenƟon policy requirements. Click on the hyperlink for PA 103-0047 in the prior sentence to view the full text of the 
Act. All changes are underlined. 
 
If you have quesƟons or require technical assistance, please reply to this email, or contact bullyingpolicy@isbe.net. 
 
Sincerely, 
Hana  
 
 
Hana Robben (she/her) 
Principal Consultant | Wellness and Student Care 
Illinois State Board of Education 
555 W Monroe St 
Chicago, IL 60661 
312-814-8889 
  



���������	�

			
	� ���
����
�
������������������� ��
�������� ��!"#$�%&'(')�*&+,-./'(,&012345�614789:;�<63=>??@1A9BCDEFGH�IJKL�M�N�OPPQDRKSCDEFGH�IJKL�T�N�OPPQDRKS012345�U;98�V�<63=>??@1A9B012345�U;98�W�<63=>??@1A9BCDEFGH�IJKL�X�N�OPPQDRKSCDEFGH�IJKL�Y�N�OPPQDRKSCDEFGH�IJKL�Z�N�OPPQDRKSCDEFGH�IJKL�[�N�OPPQDRKSCDEFGH�IJKL�\�N�OPPQDRKS012345�U;98�]̂�<63=>??@1A9BCDEFGH�IJKL�MM�NOPPQDRKSCDEFGH�IJKL�MT�NOPPQDRKS012345�U;98�]V�<63=>??@1A9B_̀abc�deec̀fbg̀"a

hijkjl�minopqrjkoi
st$̀sbaueffvbwg$wxfv""cy"wsz{|}~{�}�|������lki���oijr�j�minopqrjkoi���

�/��



ISBE REJECTION COMMENTS 

 

 

 

 

 



 
Board of Director’s Policy 

Students 500 Series 
 

Policy # 500.14 
 

WITH ISBE COMMENTS ADDED 
Preventing Bullying, Intimidation and Harassment 

  
Bullying, intimidation, and harassment diminish a student’s ability to learn and a school’s ability to 
educate. Preventing students from engaging in these disruptive behaviors and providing all students 
equal access to a safe, non-hostile learning environment are important school goals. 
 

Bullying, including but not limited to bullying on the basis of actual or perceived race, color, 
national origin, military status, unfavorable discharge status from the military service, sex, sexual 
orientation, gender identity, gender-related identity or expression, ancestry, age, religion, physical 
or mental disability, order of protection status, status of being homeless, or actual or potential 
marital or parental status, including pregnancy, association with a person or group with one or 
more of the aforementioned actual or perceived characteristics, or any other distinguishing 
characteristic, is prohibited in each of the following situations: 
 

1. During any school-sponsored education program or activity. 
2. While in school, on school property, on school buses or other school vehicles, at designated 

school bus stops waiting for the school bus, or at school-sponsored or school-sanctioned 
events or activities. 

3. Through the transmission of information from a school computer, a school computer network, 
or other similar electronic school equipment. 

4. Through the transmission of information from a computer that is accessed at a nonschool- 
related location, activity, function, or program or from the use of technology or an electronic 
device that is not owned, leased, or used by the school if the bullying causes a substantial 
disruption to the educational process or orderly operation of a school. This paragraph (item 
#4) applies only when a school administrator or teacher receives a report that bullying 
through this means has occurred; it does not require staff members to monitor any 
nonschool-related activity, function, or program. All individual instances of bullying, as well 
as all threats, suggestions, or instances of self-harm determined to be the result of bullying, to 
be reported to the parents or legal guardians of those involved under the guidelines provided 
in this paragraph (item #4) of this definition. 

 

Definitions from Section 27-23.7 of the School Code (105 ILCS 5/27-23.7) 
Bullying includes cyber-bullying and means any severe or pervasive physical or verbal act or 
conduct, including communications made in writing or electronically, directed toward a student or 
students that has or can be reasonably predicted to have the effect of one or more of the following: 
1. Placing the student or students in reasonable fear of harm to the student’s or students’ person 

or property; 
2. Causing a substantially detrimental effect on the student’s or students’ physical or mental 

health; 
3. Substantially interfering with the student’s or students’ academic performance; or 
4. Substantially interfering with the student’s or students’ ability to participate in or benefit from 

the services, activities, or privileges provided by a school. 
 

Cyber-bullying means bullying through the use of technology or any electronic communication, 
including without limitation any transfer of signs, signals, writing, images, sounds, data, or 
intelligence of any nature transmitted in whole or in part by a wire, radio, electromagnetic system, 
photo-electronic system, or photo-optical system, including without limitation electronic mail, 
Internet communications, instant messages, or facsimile communications. Cyber-bullying includes 
the creation of a webpage or weblog in which the creator assumes the identity of another person or 
the knowing impersonation of another person as the author of posted content or messages if the 
creation or impersonation creates any of the effects enumerated in the definition of bullying. Cyber-
bullying also includes the distribution by electronic means of a communication to more than one 



 
person or the posting of material on an electronic medium that may be accessed by one or more 
persons if the distribution or posting creates any of the effects enumerated in the definition of 
bullying. 
 
Restorative measures means a continuum of school-based alternatives to exclusionary discipline, 
such as suspensions and expulsions, that: (i) are adapted to the particular needs of the school and 
community, (ii) contribute to maintaining school safety, (iii) protect the integrity of a positive and 
productive learning climate, (iv) teach students the personal and interpersonal skills they will need 
to be successful in school and society, (v) serve to build and restore relationships among students, 
families, schools, and communities, (vi) reduce the likelihood of future disruption by balancing 
accountability with an understanding of students’ behavioral health needs in order to keep students 
in school and (vii) increase student accountability if the incident of bullying is based on religion, 
race, ethnicity, or any other category that is identified in the Illinois Human Rights Act.. 
 

School personnel means persons employed by, on contract with, or who volunteer in a school 
district, including without limitation school and school district administrators, teachers, school 
guidance counselors, school social workers, school counselors, school psychologists, school nurses, 
cafeteria workers, custodians, bus drivers, school resource officers, and security guards. 
 

Bullying Prevention and Response Plan 
The Executive Director or designee shall develop and maintain a bullying prevention and response 
plan that advances the school’s goal of providing all students with a safe learning environment free 
of bullying and harassment. This plan must be consistent with the requirements listed below; each 
numbered requirement, 1-12, corresponds with the same number in the list of required policy 
components in 105 ILCS 5/27-23.7(b) 1-12. 
1. The school uses the definition of bullying as provided in this policy. 
2. Bullying is contrary to State law and the policy of this school. However, nothing in the school’s 

bullying prevention and response plan is intended to infringe upon any right to exercise free 
expression or the free exercise of religion or religiously based views protected under the First 
Amendment to the U.S. Constitution or under Section 3 of Article I of the Illinois Constitution. 

3. Students are encouraged to immediately report bullying. A report may be made orally or in 
writing to the school’s Complaint Coordinator or any staff member with whom the student is 
comfortable speaking.  Anyone, including staff members and parents/guardians, who has 
information about actual or threatened bullying is encouraged to report it to the school’s 
Complaint Coordinator or any staff member. Anonymous reports are also accepted. 
 

Complaint Manager: 
Geoff Deigan 
Executive Director 
Prairie Crossing Charter School 
1531 Jones Point Road, Grayslake, IL 
gdeigan@pccharterschool.org 
www.prairiecrossingcharterschool.org 
 

“Bully Hotline” for Reporting Bullying Concerns: 
847-986-3504 

 

4. Consistent with federal and State laws and rules governing student privacy rights, the 
Executive Director or designee shall have procedures for promptly informing parents or 
guardians of all students involved in the alleged incident of bullying within 24 hours after the 
school's administration is made aware of the students' involvement in the incident and 
discussing, as appropriate, the availability of social work services, counseling, school 
psychological services, other interventions, and restorative measures. The school shall make 
diligent efforts to notify a parent or legal guardian, utilizing all contact information the school 
has available or that can be reasonably obtained by the school within the 24-hour period. 
 

5. The Executive Director or designee shall promptly investigate and address reports of bullying, 
by, among other things: 
a. Making reasonable efforts to complete the investigation within 10 school days after the 



 
date the report of a bullying incident was received and taking into consideration 
additional relevant information received during the course of the investigation about the 
reported bullying incident. 

b. Involving appropriate school support personnel and other staff persons with knowledge, 
experience, and training on bullying prevention, as deemed appropriate, in the 
investigation process. 

c. Notifying the Dean of Faculty and Students or school administrator or designee of the 
reported incident of bullying as soon as possible after the report is received. 

 
d. Parents or guardians of all students involved in the alleged incident of bullying within 24 

hours after the school's administration is made aware of the students' involvement in 
the incident and discussing, as appropriate, the availability of social work services, 
counseling, school psychological services, other interventions, and restorative measures. 
The school shall make diligent efforts to notify a parent or legal guardian, utilizing all 
contact information the school has available or that can be reasonably obtained by the 
school within the 24-hour period. 
 

e. Consistent with federal and State laws and rules governing student privacy rights, 
providing parents/guardians of the students who are parties to the investigation 
information about the investigation and an opportunity to meet with the Dean of Faculty 
and Students or school administrator or his or her designee to discuss the investigation, 
the findings of the investigation, and the actions taken to address the reported incident 
of bullying. 

The Executive Director or designee shall investigate whether a reported incident of bullying is 
within the permissible scope of the school’s jurisdiction and shall require that the school 
provide the victim with information regarding services that are available within the school and 
community, such as counseling, support services, and other programs. 

6. The Executive Director or designee shall use interventions to address bullying, that may 
include, but are not limited to, school social work services, restorative measures, social-
emotional skill building, counseling, school psychological services, and community-based 
services. 

7. A reprisal or retaliation against any person who reports an act of bullying is prohibited. A 
student’s act of reprisal or retaliation will be treated as bullying for purposes of determining 
any consequences or other appropriate remedial actions. 

8. A student will not be punished for reporting bullying or supplying information, even if the 
school’s investigation concludes that no bullying occurred. However, knowingly making a false 
accusation or providing knowingly false information will be treated as bullying for purposes of 
determining any consequences or other appropriate remedial actions. 

9. The school’s bullying prevention and response plan must be based on the engagement of a 
range of school stakeholders, including students and parents/guardians. 

10. The Executive Director or designee shall post this policy on the school’s  publicly accessible 
website, if any, and include it in the student handbook, and, where applicable, post it where 
other policies, rules, and standards of conduct are currently posted. The policy must also be 
distributed annually to parents/guardians, students, and school personnel, including new 
employees when hired. 

11. The Executive Director or designee shall assist the Board with its evaluation and assessment 
of this policy’s outcomes and effectiveness. This process shall include, without limitation: 
a. The frequency of victimization;  
b. Student, staff, and family observations of safety at a school;  
c. Identification of areas of a school where bullying occurs;  
d. The types of bullying utilized; and  
e. Bystander intervention or participation. 
The evaluation process may use relevant data and information that the school already collects 
for other purposes. The Executive Director or designee must post the information developed 
as a result of the policy evaluation on the school’s publicly accessible website, or if a website is 
not available, the information must be provided to school administrators, Board members, 
school personnel, parents/guardians, and students. 



 
12. The school’s bullying prevention plan must comply with State and Federal law and be 

consistent with other Board policies.  This includes prompting the Board, every 2 years, to 
conduct a review and re-evaluation of this policy, make any necessary and appropriate 
revisions, and file the updated policy with the State Board of Education. 

 
LEGAL REF.:  
405 ILCS 49/, Children’s Mental Health Act.  
105 ILCS 5/10-20.14, 5/24-24, and 5/27-23.7.  
23 Ill.Admin.Code §§1.240 and §1.280. 
 
Adoption Dates: 
Revised and Adopted December 2014 
Renewed February 2018 and February 2021 
Amended July 2022 
Reviewed and Renewed August 2024 
Amended and Approved November 19, 2024 



 

 

Consent Agenda 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

























































 

PCCS Board of Director’s Meeting  

DRAFT OPEN SESSION MINUTES 
October 22, 2024, at 7:o0PM 

Vicky Ranney Library 
1571 Jones Point Road 
Grayslake, IL 60030 

 

Board Present 
  

Staff Present 
Stacey White Ankur Bhatia Navin Chatlani Geoff Deigan 
Matt Earl Gabi White JoAnn Stewart  

Rebekka Herrington Jim Mertz Steve Heroux  

 
Public Present: None 

Call to Order by Stacey White at 7:01 PM 

Closed Session  
Discussion Related to 5ILCS 120/2(c)(3) - The selection of a person to fill a public office, as defined in this 
Act, including a vacancy in a public office, when the public body is given power to appoint under law or 
ordinance, or the discipline, performance or removal of the occupant of a public office, when the public body 
is given power to remove the occupant under law or ordinance. 

 Closed session began at 7:02 and concluded at 7:19 

Open Session 
• Open session began at 7:21 PM. 

• The board acknowledged Stacy White and Jim Mertz’s contributions to the board.  
 
Motion to Adjourn – Sine Die 
• Motion to adjourn by JoAnn Stewart and seconded by Steve Heroux. All in favor. Meeting adjourned at 
7:28 PM. 

Seating of Incoming Board Members – Leah Stender and Josh Pejsach 
Roll Call to Constitute a Quorum       Executive Director 
7:29 pm – All members called to order by Geoff Deigan 
 
Officer Elections: 

• Rebekka Herrington nominated Ankur Bhatia for Treasurer, seconded by Gabi White. Roll call vote: all in 
favor – motion passed. 

• Matt Earl nominated Steve Heroux for Secretary followed by a second from JoAnn Stewart. Roll call vote: 
all in favor– motion passed. 

• JoAnn Stewart nominated Rebekka Herrington for Vice President followed by a second by Leah Stender. 
Roll call vote: all in favor – motion passed. 

• Rebekka Herrington nominated Matt Earl for President followed by second JoAnn Stewart. Roll call vote: 8 
in favor, Gabi White opposed – motion passed. 

 



Resolution to Adopt Policies, Resolutions and Procedures of Former Boards 
• Motion to adopt all policies from the previous board by Rebekka Herrington and seconded by Matt Earl. 
Roll call vote: all in favor– motion passed .  

Resolution to Employ Legal Counsel: 

• Motion to retain legal counsel by Steve Heroux and seconded by Gabi White. Voice vote: all in favor– 
motion passed .  
 
Motion to Approve PCCS Holdings and Byron Colby Barn LLC Managers 
• Motion to maintain the managers of PCC Holdings and BCB LLC by Steve Heroux and seconded by Gabi 
White. Voice vote: all in favor– motion passed . 

Brief Recess to Review and Sign Board Documents: 

• Geoff Deigan called for a recess at 7:36 PM for board members to complete paperwork. 

Re-Call to Order         President 
Matt Earl called to order at 7:42 PM 
 
Welcome New Board Members       President 
Matt Earl welcomed incoming members for the upcoming service 
 
Public Comment         10 Minutes 
No public comment.  
 
Discussion Agenda 
1. FY24 Audited Financial Statements (Hand Carried from the Finance Committee Meeting) 
 Ankur Bhatia led the discussion about the audit review. Stated that no major anomalies were 
discovered. Shared some about the discussion regarding the transportation expenses, fixed costs, but overall 
committee felt the budget was inline. Geoff shared that the compliance audit will be finalized pending 
approval by the board later this meeting. (It is currently an unqualified audit). The results were that the 
school is in a strong financial position, and all covenants have been met.  
 
2. ICA Resolution -LCSMART 
 Geoff Deigan discussed the ICA agreement (attached), and its goals. The Regional Board informed Geoff 
Deigan that the attached agreement was an error because PCCS will not be lumped in but will have a chance 
to look at the information at a later date; no further action required at this time. 
 
3. Committee Updates 
 Governance update – Rebekka Herrington shared that we met last week, they are done reviewing 500.1 
Visitors policy but will send it to legal. Once it comes back, it will return to Governance. Uniform Grievance 
Policy first review tonight. The other policies listed required additional discussion before they come to the 
board. 
 Finance update – already reviewed above with Item #1. 
 
4. 1st Reading Amended Policy Uniform Grievance and Visitor Policy. 
 Navin Chatlani led the discussion around this policy, it’s a complete revamp of the previous policy. 
Navin noted that Geoff Deigan lent substantial guidance to the committee to help align the updated policy. 
Rebekka Herrington shared that most of the changes had to do with the language of policy versus procedure.  
No discussion on the Visitor policy, that was on the agenda in error. 
 
Consent Agenda 
5. Director’s Report 
 Geoff Deigan once again thanked Stacey White and Jim Mertz for their hard work. 
6. Financial Statements and 1st Quarter Financials  
 Quarterly Financial Statements are due to ISBE by November 1st pending board approval. 
7. Motion to Approve Open Session Minutes of Previous Board and Committee Meetings 
 Moved by Rebekka Herrington, 2nd by Josh Pejsach, All aye 
8. Motion to Accept Reports on Consent Agenda 



 Moved by Rebekka Herrington, 2nd by Gabi White, All aye 
 
Closed Session: No need to go into closed session because no discussion needed 
 
Public Comment         10 Minutes 
 No public Comment 
 
Action Agenda 
1A – Approve FY24 Audited Financial Statements 
 Motion Josh Pejsach, 2nd by Gabi White, roll call all ayes 
2A – Approve ICA Resolution for LCSMART 
 No motion, see notes under #2 above. 
9A – Approve Closed Session Minutes from Previous Board Meetings 
 Motion Rebekka Herrington, 2nd Joann Stewart, all ayes 
10A – Approve Legal Bills in the amount of $493.00 
 Motion Gabi White, 2nd Rebekka Herrington, roll call all ayes 
 
New Business: 
 Matt Earl shared that committee appointments should happen in their respective meetings and bring 
any new appointments to the board. 
 Rebekka Herrington mentioned that the Board will be jointly watching training for the 2 hours of board 
training mandate and suggested pairing it up with the  school fundraiser with MOD pizza night. In the Barn 
on November 6th, 6:00 PM.  
 Gabi White mentioned that she was approached about the Substitute pay structure and asked for 
additional clarification. Geoff Deigan offered to provide clarification. 
 
Adjourn 

 Motion Steve Heroux, 2nd Josh Pejsach all aye – Meeting adjourned at 8:20PM 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
Steve Heroux – Board Secretary 
 




